
 

 
Page 1 of 7 

 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Minutes of the Governing Board 

Regular Meeting 

October 26, 2022 

 

Temple University Harrisburg, Strawberry Square, Harrisburg PA 

hbgica.org 

Members in Attendance Ms. Audry Carter 
Mr. Doug Hill 
Mr. H. Ralph Vartan 

A Quorum Was Recognized 

Ex-Officio Members in Attendance Ms. Marita Kelley, Director of Finance, 
City of Harrisburg 
Mr. Michael Wood, 
Office of the Budget 

 

In Attendance Mr. Michael Cassidy 
Independent Counsel  
Mr. Jeffrey Stonehill 
Authority Manager 

 

Meeting Begins   4:01 p.m. 
Welcome by Audry Carter, Chair Ms. Carter welcomed the Board. She 

added that Ms. Speaker MacNett and Ms. 
Hodge were absent. 

 

Approval of the minutes of 
September 26, 2022 
 
 

Ms. Carter asked for a motion to approve 
the minutes. 
Mr. Hill offered a motion to approve. 
A second by Mr. Vartan. 
The motion passes. 

Approved 3-0. 

Chair’s Report Ms. Carter stated noted her attendance 
at the dedication of the new McCormick 
Riverfront Library.  
Ms. Carter noted some of the challenges 
facing the City administration in the final 
months of 2022 including, “a new budget, 
discussions on the uses of the American 
Rescue Plan money, final resolution on FY 
2021 audit, an economic development 
plan, closing out FY 2022, outside of the 
day-to-day challenges. 

 

Update of City of Harrisburg Issues 
by the Business 
Administrator/Chief of Staff 

Ms. Carter introduced Dan Hartman, City 
of Harrisburg Business 
Administrator/Chief of Staff. 
Mr. Hartman commented on the 
following items: 

 Economic development plan 

 



 

 
Page 2 of 7 

 

 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
proposed uses: 
o Council has asked to 

demonstrate how the 
programs will function 

 Firefighter union negotiations 
 Revisiting the police union 

contract as a result of the CSA 
program 

 CARES Act Mad Dash Program 
Award for the City of Harrisburg: 
o An award of $13 million 

towards City capital needs, 
mostly in parks 

o Addresses deferred 
maintenance 

 Ambac settlement and advanced 
payment to eliminate this debt: 
o Mr. Hartman handed out a 

schedule for debt payoff 
o The Mayor would like to 

retire the entire Ambac 
balance by the end of 2022; 
thereby saving of $4 million 
in future interest payments 
compared to if the debt were 
paid off over the next decade 

o Discussions have been 
ongoing with the Controller 
and the Treasurer on this 
subject 

o The Controller estimates that 
sufficient cash balances exist 
to retire the entire debt by 
the end of 2022 

o It would have a dramatic 
impact on the 2023 budget, 
which is still in development, 
by eliminating all debt 
payments next fiscal year 

Mr. Hartman concluded by saying the 
fiscal priority is to pay off all outstanding 
debt and run “lean” budgets for the next 
few years, with revenues outpacing 
expenditures, so that when the City is 
able to reenter the municipal debt 
marketplace in the right way. 
 



 

 
Page 3 of 7 

 

Mr. Hartman introduced Marita Kelley, 
Director Finance, for the City of 
Harrisburg, in order to elaborate on the 
development of the 2023 budget. 
 
Ms. Kelley noted that staff was 75% 
completed with the General Fund budget 
proposal, and they are working on 
finalizing the capital projects schedule, 
now impacted by the award of the CARES 
Act Mad Dash money. She noted that the 
Controller’s Office is very helpful in the 
developing a financial forecast. Ms. Kelley 
noted there were a series of small funds, 
such as the State Liquid Fuels Fund, 
which still needed to be completed. She 
said the Neighborhood Services Fund is 
being done concurrent with the General 
Fund. The firefighter’s union contract 
needs to be finalized because it would 
impact the budget.  
 
She concluded by saying that the 
administration will deliver the proposed 
budget to City Council on November 22. 
 
She added that her office has a new 
candidate for the Financial Analyst 
position, which she is hopeful will be on 
board soon. She thanked her staff. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the Ambac payoff. 
Mr. Hartman reviewed the interest 
savings from early payoff. 
 
Mr. Hill asked about the remaining fund 
balance after payoff. Mr. Hartman said 
that they were working with Bryan 
McCutcheon and the Charlie DeBrunner 
to ensure a sufficient balance would 
remain for 2023 operations. 
 
Mr. Hill talked about deferred 
maintenance projects. Mr. Hartman 
would prefer to rebuild the cash balance 
and reenter the municipal debt 
marketplace.  
 



 

 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Mr. Vartan asked about the compliance 
with the Mayor’s Five-Year Plan should 
the entire Ambac balance be paid off in 
2022. He concluded that the ICA Board 
would not require an update to the plan 
for this action to occur.  
 
Mr. Vartan noted that the current cash 
balance is a little lower than presumed in 
the Mayor’s Five-Year Plan. 
 
Ms. Carter asked if Ambac was offering a 
multiplier, as they did last time, to 
incentivize payoff early. Mr. Hartman said 
they were not. 
 
Ms. Carter noted concern about the 
unknown state of the economy. 
 
Mr. Hartman noted that the pending 
recession will not prevent this early 
payoff of the Ambac debt. 
 
Ms. Carter asked if there will be more 
information before the check is issued. 
Mr. Hartman said that they are 
constantly monitoring revenue and 
expenses. 
 
Mr. Vartan noted concern about fund 
balance but supporti of the payoff of the 
debt. 
 
Mr. Vartan reiterated that reentrance 
into the municipal debt marketplace 
would require the City to exit Act 47 
status. Furthermore, that cannot occur 
until the agree-upon Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement is finally 
executed by the parties. Mr. Hartman 
said that the City is making the right 
moves. 
 
Mr. Vartan asked for a summary of the 
five-year impacts of the new Fraternal 
Order of Police collective bargaining 
agreement amendment. Ms. Kelley said it 
would be shared. 
 



 

 
Page 5 of 7 

 

Everyone repeated their thanks for the 
receipt award of the CARES Act money. It 
will change the Capital Budget 
significantly. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the Ambac 
interest rate. Ms. Kelley talked about the 
opportunity to save on interest costs. Mr. 
Stonehill talked about the fact that the 
City cannot currently incur any new debt. 
Ms. Kelley talked about the CARES Act 
money. Mr. Hartman talked about using 
Dauphin County to extend debt if 
needed. 
 
Mr. Vartan noted that the debt burden 
would rise over time. He added that the 
City is in such a good place that it can 
even have such conversations. 
 
Mr. Stonehill asked about the timetable 
for the submission of the proposed 2023 
budget. 
 
Ms. Kelley discussed the budget hearings. 
 
Ms. Carter suggested a brief meeting on 
November 30. 
 
She suggested December 14 as the next 
meeting and hold December 21, which is 
the regularly scheduled meeting for the 
ICA Board. 
 
Mr. Vartan added his thoughts. 
 
Ms. Kelley noted that DCED needs to 
review the final budget as well. 

Authority Manager’s Report Mr. Stonehill presented the bills paid 
report through October 26, 2022. 
 
Mr. Stonehill updated the Board about 
broadcasting future ICA Board Meetings. 

 

Other Business Mr. Hartman introduced Mr. Jared 
Truesdale, Deputy City Clerk, who was in 
attendance. 

 

Public Comments Mr. Eric Epstein commented on his Right 
to Know Act request that he submitted to 
the City of Harrisburg. He referenced his 

 



Page 6 of 7 

concerns about other post-employment 
benefits (OPEB) and the Neighborhood 
Services Fund. He mentioned broadband 
funding and several other grant 
programs. 

Mr. Stonehill noted minimum municipal 
obligations for pensions. 

Mr. Stonehill thanked DCED for their 
attendance. Ms. Madra Clay, Act 47 
Coordinator, Pennsylvania Department 
Of Community and Economic 
Development, commended both City 
officials for their efforts and the ICA 
Board for their commitment to oversight. 
She noted that department’s role in the 
CARES Act funding. 

Adjourn meeting at 5:07 p.m. Motion by Mr. Vartan. 
A second was not required. 

Approved 3-0. 

Respectfully submitted: 

--------------------------------- 

Jeffrey M. Stonehill, Authority Manager 



 

 
Page 7 of 7 

 

Appendix Documents 





Summary of Bills Paid – Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority for Harrisburg 

Report – October 26, 2022  

 
 

 Pursuit Co-Working Harrisburg $95.00 October 1, 2022 
Virtual Office Monthly Subscription 
 

 Digital Ocean $12.72 October 1, 2022 
Website software licenses 
 

 Digital Ocean $6.87 October 1, 2022 
Web Host 
 

 Pennsylvania Department of  +$100,000.00 October 2. 2022 
Community & Economic Development 
Year Five Funding 
 

 Johnson & Duffie $560.00 October 26, 2022 
Independent General Counsel 
 

 MESH PA LLC $5,250.00 October 26, 2022 
Authority Manager 
 

Starting balance: $102,635.37  

Ending balance: $191,872.27 

  

 Interest earnings Y-T-D  $21.32 
 Fees Y-T-D    $0 



AMBAC Proposed Payoff to City Council 10/21/22
























































